ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 11, 2002
1:04 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg, Chair
Representative Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Ethan Berkow tz

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Al bert Kookesh
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 321

"An Act relating to the purpose for crine victins' conpensation;
and limting the factors that may be considered in making a
crime victins' conpensation award in cases of sexual assault or
sexual abuse of a mnor."

- MOVED CSSSHB 321(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 330
"An Act relating to providing alcoholic beverages to a person
under 21 years of age."

- MOVED CSHB 330(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 332

"An Act extending the termnation date of the Council on
Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 332(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 375
"An Act making corrective anendnents to the Al aska Statutes as
reconmended by the revisor of statutes; and providing for an
effective date."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 11, 2002



HOUSE BI LL NO. 384

"An Act relating to submission of civil litigation information,;
and anending Rules 41(a) and 58, Alaska Rules of Guvil
Procedure, Rule 511(c) and (e), Alaska Rules of Appellate
Procedure, and Rule 503(d), Al aska Rules of Evidence."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 2/ 13/ 02
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 321

SHORT TI TLE: CRI ME VI CTI M8 COVPENSATI ON
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) GUESS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 14/ 02 1959 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1959 (H JUD, FIN

01/ 16/ 02 1993 (H COSPONSOR( S) : MEYER

01/ 30/ 02 2094 (H SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED

01/ 30/ 02 2094 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 30/ 02 2094 (H JUD, FIN

02/ 04/ 02 2152 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  DYSON

02/ 08/ 02 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 08/ 02 (H Bill Postponed To 2/11/02

02/ 11/ 02 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 330

SHORT TI TLE: PROVI DI NG ALCOHOL TO PERSONS UNDER 21
SPONSOR(S): JUDI Cl ARY BY REQUEST

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 16/ 02 1980 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 02 1980 (H JUD, FIN

02/ 11/ 02 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 332
SHORT TI TLE: EXTENDI NG COUNCI L ON DOVESTI C VI OLENCE
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) BUNDE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/ 16/ 02 1981 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 02 1981 (H JUD, FIN

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 11, 2002



02/ 08/ 02 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 08/ 02 (H) Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)
02/ 11/ 02 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE GRETCHEN GUESS

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 112

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SSHB 321.

DEL SM TH, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

PO Box 111200

Juneau, Al aska 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Assisted with the presentation of SSHB 321,
stated support for its current |anguage, and responded to
questi ons.

KAREN BI TZER, Executive D rector

St andi ng Toget her Agai nst Rape (STAR)

1057 West Fireweed Lane, Suite 230

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of SSHB 321 and
responded to questions.

HEATHER M NOBREGA, St af f

to Representative Rokeberg

House Judiciary Standing Conmttee

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 118

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 330 on behalf of the House
Judiciary Standing Commttee, sponsor.

MARTI GREESQON, Executive Director

Anchor age Chapter

Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD)

3600 Arctic Boulevard, Suite 3

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded testinony during discussion of HB
330.

PAMELA WATTS, Executive Director

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 11, 2002



Governor's Advi sory Board on Al coholismand Drug Abuse

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

3290 Nowel | Avenue

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 330 and
responded to questions.

Cl NDY CASHEN

Juneau Chapt er

Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD)

211 4th Street, Suite 102

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 330.

LI NDA W LSON, Deputy Director

Publ i ¢ Def ender Agency (PDA)

Departnent of Adm nistration

900 West 5th Avenue, Suite 200

Anchor age, Al aska 99501-2090

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 330 expressed the
PDA' s concerns.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Legal Services Section-Juneau

Crimnal D vision

Department of Law (DQL)

PO Box 110300

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0300

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 330 and
responded to questions.

PATTI SWENSON, St aff

to Representative Con Bunde

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 501

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of the sponsor, Representative
Con Bunde, responded to questions regarding the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) to HB 332.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-15, SIDE A
Number 0001

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 11, 2002



CHAIR NORVAN ROKEBERG called the House Judiciary Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:04 p.m Represent ati ves
Rokeberg, Ogan, Coghill, and Meyer were present at the call to
or der. Representatives Janes and Berkowitz arrived as the

meeting was in progress.

HB 321 - CRIME VICTIMS COVPENSATI ON

Nunmber 0096

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the first order of business would
be SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 321, "An Act relating
to the purpose for crinme victinms' conpensation; and limting the
factors that may be considered in nmaking a crime victins'
conpensation award in cases of sexual assault or sexual abuse of
a mnor."

Number 0105

REPRESENTATI VE  GRETCHEN  GUESS, Alaska State Legislature,
sponsor, explained that the Victins' Conpensation Board and the
statutory |anguage that governs it were established in 1971, and
she posited that this entity and its governing |anguage were
created at a tinme when sexual assault and sexual abuse of mnors
was not discussed in depth. She offered her belief that SSHB
321 would bring the statute in line wwth what "we believe as a
comunity.” She added that SSHB 321 would not change the
criteria for any other wvictins, only for victins of sexual
assault and sexual abuse of a m nor.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS explained that SSHB 321 deletes from the
purpose statenent in AS 18.67.010 what she calls the antiquated
| anguage of "innocent persons”; instead, it refers sinply to
"persons”. It also adds |anguage specifying that in cases of
sexual assault or sexual abuse of a mnor, the board [may not
deny an order based on considerations of provocation, the use of
al cohol or drugs by the victim or the prior social history of
the victin. She noted that SSHB 321 has the support of the
adm nistration, "the network," Standing Together Against Rape
(STAR), the Al aska Native Justice Center, [and the Al aska Native
Wnen's Sexual Assault Commttee].

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked why "innocent" is being deleted from
t he description of who will be conpensat ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS posited that it is redundant |anguage; in
Section 2, she pointed out, there is |anguage directing the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 11, 2002



board, "when ... dealing wth any other crinmes,” to consider al
ci rcunstances determined to be relevant, including provocation
consent, or any other behavior of the victim that directly or
indirectly contributed. Therefore, she opined, there is no real
reason to have "innocent"” in the purpose statenment; "I believe
it is old language, and | also believe it provides a
subjectivity in cases of sexual assault, where the board could
say the victim wasn't innocent because, for exanple, they used
al cohol or drugs.” She added that she thinks renoving
"innocent" makes the statute clearer.

Number 0348

DEL SM TH, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), offered support of the
| anguage in SSHB 321; "I don't think anybody's any less a victim
based upon what they m ght have consuned in the way of al cohol
and | believe that that is no license for anybody to do anything
[ harnful to another person].” He said that according to his
understanding, the Violent Crines Conpensation Board (VCCB),
which is | ocated wthin the DPS, already makes it's
determ nations using the guidelines proposed in SSHB 321, which,
he added, is the reason for a zero fiscal note. He noted,
however, that although the current VCCB operates under these
proposed guidelines, there is the potential that future boards
may approach the clains differently and not conpensate those
vi cti ns. He urged the conmittee to support the |anguage change
proposed by SSHB 321, which, he reiterated, is sinply a
reflection of the VCCB s current practice.

CHAI R ROKEBERG nenti oned that he has sone concerns regarding the
i ssues of negligence and cul pability. He nentioned the term
"conparative negligence,” and asked whether excluding the prior
social history of the victim for exanple, "wouldn't that be
| i ke excluding the prior crimnal record of a crimnal?"

MR SMTH acknow edged that "if you picked a fight wth
sonebody, M. Chairman, and then were injured in that [fight],
that is the kind of thing that | would say would mtigate the

conpensation that you m ght have." "But if you chose to get
i ntoxicated, and passed out on the street,” he countered,
pointing out that it is now a crinme to have sex with someone who
is passed out, "I amnot sure that you chose to be a victim" A

person mght nake sone bad choices regarding alcohol and/or
drugs, he noted, and while that behavior should be discouraged
to the extent possible, when that person becones the victimof a

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 11, 2002



crime because he/she appeared vulnerable, then "that nakes a
difference to ne, as a | aw enforcenent officer."

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN noted that mnors do not have the maturity
to make certain choices, and so with regard to crinmes against a
mnor, not as much culpability could be attributed to soneone
who is not an adult. He asked whether the sponsor agreed.

Nunber 0644

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS said that in general terns, she agrees, but
added that when it conmes to cases of sexual assault, she has to
di sagree; "provocation, the use of alcohol or drugs, past socia
history, | don't believe fall under culpability when it comes to
rape,"” whether of a mnor or an adult, which is what SSHB 321 is
addr essi ng.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked whether she had taken into consideration
t he varyi ng degrees of sexual - abuse-of-a-m nor crines.

REPRESENTATI VE GQUESS sai d she had not.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked whether there is a degree of sexual abuse
of a mnor that m ght just involve contact.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he did not recall the exact
di stinction, but surmsed that what SSHB 321 does is nake sure
that victins of crines receive conpensation. Therefore, he
opined, the type of crinme wouldn't really be material to whether
soneone is entitled to that conpensation.

CHAI R ROKEBERG remarked, "If it's the Satch Carlson contact, |I'm
not sure why it would even [be] before the board unless there
was nmental health problens.”

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS interjected to say that as SSHB 321 is
currently witten, it is excluding three things but leaving in
everything else; it's leaving in consent and other relevant
matters, and is just stating that provocation, use of alcohol or
drugs, or the wvictimis oprior soci al hi story cannot be
consi der ed.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ suggested that [this issue] "goes to
the 'No neans no,' regardless of anything else. He noted that
in the "evidentiary code,”" we have what's called the 'rape
shield law,'" offering that it basically says that character
evi dence cannot be used to prove conduct. To further this

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 11, 2002



poi nt, he paraphrased from the Commentary section, Al aska Rul es
of Court, which read:

There is a current trend, especially in rape cases, to
exclude all or nuch character evidence that relates to
the victim C Total exclusion nmay protect the
victim against the introduction of deeply personal
facts in cases where introduction of such facts is
intended to enbarrass the victim rather than help the
defendant, but it does so at the expense of allow ng
such evidence to cone in for the benefit of the
accused when it would substantially inprove his case."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ offered the interpretation that this
says, "we're not going into the victims character, because that
doesn't matter to the crine; that's irrelevant."” He surm sed
that this kind of thinking, which, he opined, is generally
accepted in the crimnal code, is carried forward by "this sort
of legislation" when dealing in the area of victins' rights. He
added that this is a well-established |ine of thinking and would
not raise "even a | egal eyebrow "

Number 0900

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS, in response to questions, said that in
nost of the cases she has I|ooked at, the victinse were
conpensated for health reasons.

MR. SM TH added that a person could file a claimwth the VCCB
for nmedical treatment, for counseling, and possibly for
conpensation due to loss of work, and the <claim is then
evaluated with regard to what is conpensabl e and what is not.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked to what degree provocation "counts”
with regard to other crimnal proceedings.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS, after offering the interpretation that
Representative Coghill is perhaps referring to the fine Iline
bet ween provocation and consent, noted that this fine line is
one of the reasons why consent was |left out of the exclusions
proposed by SSHB 321. She indicated her agreenment wth
Representative Berkowitz that the victim of sexual assault or
sexual abuse of a mnor does not, by definition, provoke that
type of crine.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked whether trying to prove guilt or
i nnocence in a court of lawis linked with getting funds through
t he VCCB

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ expl ai ned that when the VCCB processes

a victims claim it is an entirely separate proceeding. He
said that in a courtroom the general rule in admtting evidence
is that the judge wll weigh whether the prejudicial value of
the evidence is greater than the probative value; 1in other
wor ds, whether sonmething is nore likely to inflame the jury than
it is to enlighten the jury. For the nost part, he added,

evidence related to the victims character is inadmssible in
sexual assault cases because it is deened, alnost universally,
irrel evant. He suggested that any hypothetical situation where
this is not so would be so extrenme that he could not i nagine
[drafting] a |aw just for that extrene exanple.

Nunber 1150

KAREN Bl TZER, Executive Director, Standing Toget her Against Rape
(STAR), testified via teleconference in support of SSHB 321, and
said that she is speaking on behalf of the victins and | oved
ones that STAR serves everyday. She noted that |ast year, STAR
advocates responded to 279 new adult cases of sexual assault and
al nost 300 new cases of sexual assault of mnors. She expl ai ned
that STAR is an advocacy agency working to help victins and
ensuring that they have access to tools for recovery. She noted
that STAR s nessages are constant and consistent: "W believe
you; it was not your fault.” One of the goals of victims crine
conpensation, she said, is to help nake the victins whole for
their loss as a result of crinme. Wiile victins nay not be nade
conpletely whole because of the physical and enotional danage
they sustain, she explained that advocacy agencies such as STAR
can reinforce their ability to regain control of their Ilives.
"As one victim so aptly put it, '"It's not enough to survive; |
want to thrive,'" she rel ayed.

M5. BITZER said, "I can appreciate the struggle that we have
with contributing concepts regarding all victins of crinme, and |
know it's one way that we protect ourselves." She noted that

sexual assault truly challenges one's sense of personal safety.
She sai d:

Do you ever conpare your behavior to that of someone

else and say, "Wll, | don't do that so this won't
happen to ne"; "I don't eat at MDonalds so ny
arteries won't clog"; or "I always wear ny seatbelt so

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 11, 2002



|l won't be that injured in an auto accident"?
Unfortunately we can't say that about sexual assault.
You can do all the "right things" - not go out alone,
not drink - and still be a victim of sexual assault.
Are they any nore or less a victimthan, say, soneone
who was out wal king alone in the dark?

M5. BITZER said that [the language in SSHB 321] puts the
responsibility for the crinme where it belongs: on the offender.
She noted that it provides victins access to services - such as

t herapeutic services, intervention services, and services that
meet other needs - when no other resources for funds are
avai |l abl e. She expl ained that over the years, STAR has hel ped
victinms secure dental work and glasses replacenents when they
were not able to access "victins'-of-crine conpensation.” She
said that STAR believes that SSHB 321 will bring the statutes
into line with current practice as well as into the 21st
century's view of the victim In conclusion, she appl auded the

sponsors "for helping to nake governnment work for its citizens,"
and appl auded the commttee for reviewng SSHB 321 early in the
sessi on.

M5. BITZER, in response to questions, said that victins'
advocates at STAR do assist clients with filling out paperwork
requesting victins' crinme conpensation, and that the advocates
have witten letters on behalf of clients. She said that
usual |y, conpensation covers the cost of counseling, for both
victims and their famlies, and therapeutic intervention. She

al so recounted that STAR has assisted victins of sexual-abuse-
of-a-mnor crinmes in applying to the VCCB for conpensation. She
added that oftentines, it is the teenagers that have the hardest
time receiving conpensation from the VCCB; they may have been
drinking and so nmay be nore likely to be turned down for
benefits. She explained that they, too, need intervention - not
just the small children who are victins - so, in order for those
teenagers to access those services, it is inportant for the VCCB
to reach out to themas well.

Nunmber 1446

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN expressed the concern that the |anguage in
SSHB 321 is anbiguous. He indicated that he was not sure which
crinmes were being discussed.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS expl ai ned that the |anguage being added in

Section 2 refers to crines of sexual assault and crines of
sexual abuse of a mnor. In response to questions, she

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 11, 2002



reiterated her comments that the word "innocent"” is redundant,
that it hurts in cases of sexual assault and sexual abuse of a
mnor, and that it should no |longer be included in the purpose
statenment of AS 18.67. To el aborate, she pointed out that the
| anguage change to AS 18.67.080(c), as proposed by Section 2,

still allows the board to consider all circunmstances - including
provocation, consent, or any other behavior of the victim that
directly or indirectly contributes - for clains based on all

other crinmes; the |anguage being added only addresses clains
based on the crine of sexual assault or the crine of sexual

abuse of a mnor. She suggested that the change proposed by
SSHB 321 still allows the board to consider the supposed
i nnocence of a person who, for exanple, starts a bar braw and
gets his/her teeth kicked in. 1In response to further questions,
she opined that clains for conpensation are subject to al

subsections of AS 18.67.080 - (a) through (d) - so a person

coul d not get paid under AS.67.080(a) alone, for exanple.

CHAIR ROKEBERG noted that AS 18.67.080(c) does say: "I'n
determ ni ng whether to nake an order under this section ...."

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS posited that it is the inclusion of that
| anguage in AS 18.67.080(c) that nakes the use of the word
"innocent” in AS 18.67.010 redundant.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked how many clains based on sexual
assault have been deni ed by the VCCB.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS said that because of confidentiality
restrictions, reports from the VCCB do not include infornmation
pertaining to why clains are denied, so it is difficult to
provi de statistical data.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked whether there is any anecdotal
evi dence.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS confirmed that there is anecdotal evidence
"from the community” showi ng that there are sone cases that are
guestionabl e and which could be clarified by the renoval of the
word "innocent” from the purpose |anguage. She nentioned a case
in which a 14-year-old was gang raped but the VCCB denied
conpensati on because there was al cohol involved. She sai d that
she did not know whether the appeals process altered the outcone
of that [clain], but suggested that renoving "innocent" as
proposed by SSHB 321 would clarify the statute on this issue.

CHAI R ROKEBERG cl osed the public hearing on SSHB 321.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 11, 2002



Number 1699

CHAIR ROKEBERG nmade a notion to adopt Amendnent 1, to reinsert
"innocent™ on page 1, line 7; Anmendnent 1 has the effect of
keeping that |anguage in the purpose statenent of AS 18.67,
whi ch governs the VCCB

Nunber 1715
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ obj ect ed.

CHAIR ROKEBERG to clarify, pointed out that the purpose of the
VCCB is to only award funds to people who are innocent. He
noted that SSHB 321 "carves out ... an exception", and posited
that the addition of the |anguage in Section 2 is sufficient for
t hat purpose.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES agr eed. She, too, noted that the purpose
statenment pertains to the entirety of AS 18.67 rather than to
just the provision that would be altered by Section 2. She
opined that leaving the word "innocent” in the purpose statenent
would not affect the changes proposed by Section 2 to AS
18.67.080(c).

CHAI R ROKEBERG cal l ed an at-ease from1:34 p.m to 1:35 p. m

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ, in defense of his objection to
Amendnent 1, said:

A lot of times you hear on the news that soneone "pled
i nnocent” to a charge. Nobody pleads innocent; that's

never what happens in a crimnal case. People are
judged "not gquilty." And when you try and introduce
the concept of innocence, ... | think it inplies
conplete purity. What we're doing in subsection (c)
is saying ... that the totality of circunstances are
what are to be evaluated, because assessing conplete
i nnocence is -- you've got to disprove all the
negati ves. | think it's clear wthout the term
"innocent™ in there; it's an adjective that doesn't

add nuch to the statute.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked if Representative Berkowitz would
prefer to replace "innocent” with "not guilty".

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said no; "I just think you withdraw it
and you pay conpensation to persons injured.” He offered that
there is a tension between "innocent persons” and |ooking at the
totality of circunstances. He opined that by getting into the
i ssue of what innocence is, it introduces a whole other set of
i ssues that the VCCB nust then evaluate, which, he surmsed, is
potentially problematic.

Nunmber 1896

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, although acknowl edging that that is a
good point, noted that the VCCB is being asked to nake a
determ nati on based on provocation, consent, and other behavior
- to perform kind of a triage. He opined that the term
"innocent" nerely acts as a guiding factor.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES remarked that when reading the entire
paragraph, it nakes sense to retain "innocent". She suggest ed
that it clarifies that paynents won't be nmade to the people who
are guilty of the crinmes that the clains are based on

CHAIR ROKEBERG said he is offering Amendnent 1 because he
believes that "the degree of contributory negligence ... can be
neasured by the board as to the anmount of the award.” He opi ned
that this is reflected currently in AS 18.67.080(c), and he
surm sed that SSHB 321 proposes to exclude that consideration in
cases of sexual assault and sexual abuse of a mnor.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked for the sponsor's opinion of
Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS said that she did not think it is a "dea
breaker"; it just shows that after 30 years, mybe the entire
statute needs to be reviewed at sone point. She noted that the
Department of Law has a different opinion than the Legislative
Legal and Research Services Division. She surm sed that her
goal could still be acconplished even if Amendnent 1 is adopted.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he is maintaining his objection to
Amendnent 1.

Number 2058

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Coghill, Janes
QOgan, and Rokeberg voted for Amendnment 1. Representatives Meyer
and Berkowitz voted against it. Therefore, Anmendnent 1 was

adopted by a vote of 4-2.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he would be nore confortable with SSHB
321 if it only pertained to sexual abuse of a mnor. He
expressed concern that if it becomes mandatory for the VCCB to
award conpensation to victins of sexual abuse, there mght be
people who will take advantage of the system if, due to nenta

illness or chronic substance abuse, they repeatedly put
t hensel ves in situations where they are sexually assaul ted.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked whether Representative Ogan is
suggesting that sonme wonen deliberately go out and get
t henmsel ves drunk and then raped in order to get conpensation?

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said no. He said that what he is suggesting
is that there are probably sonme people who, because of serious
social problens, are far nore subject to sexual assault - not
that they purposely seek to be raped - but then, when they are
raped, they discover a system that they can repeatedly take
advant age of. He said he would like to know whether there are
people who "have shown wup" time and tinme again and, if so,
whet her they are being deni ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said t hat she coul d under st and
Representative Ogan's point but opined that there are few people
who woul d abuse the system in that fashion. She suggested that
the benefits of the change proposed by SSHB 321 outweigh the
potential for abuse.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL remarked that the VCCB has a tough job
"resources being what they are,” and then having to decide whom

to help and whom to deny. He asked whether the fact that
sonmeone receives conpensation could affect either the ongoing
court proceeding or any forthcom ng appeal. He also noted his

concern that the VCCB is having its discretion curtailed, given
that SSHB 321 would prohibit a denial based on the itens |isted
in Section 2.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he, too, has concerns about taking away
the VCCB s discretion regarding cases of sexual assault, noting
that he did not have any problem doing so in cases of sexual
abuse of a m nor.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said he supports SSHB 321 and posited that
the concerns expressed at this neeting would be considered by
t he VCCB. He opined that if anyone does attenpt to abuse the
system in the manner suggested by Representative Ogan, the VCCB
will sinply deny those clains.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 11, 2002



Number 2377

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to report SSHB 321, as anended,
out of commttee wth individual reconmendati ons and the
acconpanyi ng zero fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN objected for purpose of discussion. He
opi ned that passage of SSHB 321 woul d nmandate paynent of clains
based on sexual assault, regardless of how often the clainant
seeks conpensati on. Representative Ogan then renoved his
obj ecti on.

Nunmber 2416

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked whether there were any further objection to
reporting SSHB 321, as anended, out of conmttee. There being
no objection, CSSSHB 321(JUD) was reported from the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conmittee.

CHAI R ROKEBERG cal |l ed an at-ease from1:50 p.m to 1:53 p.m

HB 330 - PROVI DI NG ALCOHOL TO PERSONS UNDER 21

Nunmber 2423

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 330, "An Act relating to providing al coholic
beverages to a person under 21 years of age."

Nunber 2435

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 330, version 22-1LS1178\0O Ford, 2/11/02,
as a work draft.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
Number 2461

HEATHER M NOBREGA, Staff to Representative Rokeberg, House
Judiciary Standing Committee, Alaska State Legislature, on
behalf of +the House Judiciary Standing Commttee, sponsor,
expl ained that after the accident |ast summer in which Anchorage
police officer Justin Wllam was killed, Mdthers Against Drunk
Driving (MADD) requested that the penalties be increased for
adults who provide alcohol to mnors who then go on to hurt or

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- February 11, 2002



kill sonmeone. She noted that currently, a person who provides
al cohol to a mnor could be charged with a m sdeneanor. She
relayed that the original version of HB 330 would nmake it a
class C felony for a person to provide alcohol to a mnor who
then, while under the influence of that alcohol, injures or
kills soneone. She pointed out that Version O adds the
stipulations that the mnor act with "civil negligence" and that
the injury be a "serious physical injury"”.

TAPE 02-15, SIDE B
Number 2500

M5. NOBREGA expl ained that the Departnent of Law suggested that
there be a negligence standard included in this legislation, so
she had first researched the different standards of conduct at

the crimnal | evel , which include "know ngly", "crimnal
negl i gence", and "recklessly". She nmentioned that the
definitions for those standards are included in nenbers

packets. After first considering use of the term "crimnal

negl i gence", she said it was determned that proving crim nal
negligence requires proof beyond a reasonable doubt, and so,
instead, opted to use the |owest standard possible, which is
civil negligence. She noted that another reason for including
this standard is to prevent a mnor who has done nothing w ong
but who is in an accident from being used as the inpetus for
charging an adult with a felony.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ sai d: "I appreciate the conceptua
changes but | have an alternative way of getting there.” He
asked nenbers to turn to the original version of HB 330, and
suggested that [paragraph 2] should be altered to say:

the person under 21 years of age who receives the
al coholic beverage seriously injures or causes the
death of another person and the injury or death occurs
because the person under 21 years of age was under the
influence of the alcoholic beverage received in
violation of this section.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ offered that this change maintains the
sinplicity of the original version of HB 330.

CHAI R ROKEBERG ar gued that such a change nmakes a huge difference
in the bill and "raises the standard conpletely above -- to a
.08 or inpairnent standard of being under the influence."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ responded: "Not at all."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 11, 2002



CHAI R ROKEBERG said: "Yes it does; if he's under the influence,
he's got to be at least neeting the crimnal definition of
i npai rnent . "

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ repli ed: "No, ... the .08 standard --
it's merely a presunption ... J[and] those are all arguable;
arguably, an individual can be under the influence at .001 or
. 002. What the statutes have are presunptions that have to be
rebutted.”

Nunber 2351

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ, in response to questions, said he is
mai ntai ning his objection to the adoption of Version O as a work
draft and opined that it would be nuch nore conplicated to anmend
than the original version of HB 330.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked whether, wth a civil negligence
standard, soneone causing serious physical injury could be
convicted using the "civil standard of proof of <clear and
convi nci ng. "

M5. NOBREGA said she thinks so, adding that the DOL has
indicated that civil negligence requires a |ower standard of
proof, perhaps even sinply by a preponderance of the evidence.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said his concern is whether sonmeone coul d be
crimnally convicted, using a civil standard of negligence, for
t he behavi or of sonebody el se.

M5. NOBREGA said that according to her understanding, that is
possi bl e.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ added that it seens to him that the
crimnal conduct for which the defendant would be convicted

would be the supplying of alcohol, and once the defendant
supplies the alcohol, then, in essence, he/she assunes the risk
that the alcohol wll result in death or serious physical

i njury. He noted that this is just his initial assunption, and
that they could check with the DOL.

Nunber 2183

A roll <call vote was taken. Representatives Janes, gan

Coghill, and Rokeberg voted for the adoption of Version O as a
wor k draft. Representatives Meyer and Berkowitz voted against

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 11, 2002



it. Therefore, Version O was before the conmttee by a vote of
4-2.

Nunber 2171

MARTI GREESON, Executive Director, Anchorage Chapter, Mthers
Against Drunk Driving (MADD), testified via tel econference and
indicated that one of the primary reasons that the |egal
drinking age is 21 is because young people nake bad decisions
when they drink. She suggested that when an adult provides
al cohol to soneone under the legal drinking age, a higher
standard of responsibility and culpability should be inposed.
She nentioned the issue of possibly adding a provision to HB 330
requiring the namng of victinms, and briefly relayed sone of the
details of the accident that killed Oficer Wllam and the
ensui ng court case.

Nunber 2052

PAMELA WATTS, Executive Director, Governor's Advisory Board on
Al coholism and Drug Abuse, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), said that the
advi sory board appreciates the commttee's recognition of the
seriousness of adults providing alcohol to persons under 21
years of age, and supports the passage of HB 330. She noted
that many adults fail to realize how serious providing alcohol
to underage individuals is, and how potentially life-threatening
this behavior is. She relayed that research indicates that
drinking is associated with risk-taking and sensation-seeking
behavi ors anong adol escents, and that it has a "disinhibiting"
effect that may increase the likelihood of unsafe activities.
In 1997, nationally, 21 percent of young drivers - 15 to 21
years old - who were killed in crashes were intoxicated; a
further breakdown indicated that that was 25 percent of the
young mal es and 12 percent of the young fermal e drivers.

M5. WATTS relayed that people who begin drinking before the age
of 15 are four tinmes nore likely to devel op al cohol dependence

than those who wait wuntil age 21. Each additional year of
"del ayed drinking onset" reduces the probability of alcohol
dependence by 14 percent. Fam |y and peers can actively

i nfl uence underage-drinking behavior by explicitly discouraging
use or, passively, by providing nodels of drinking behavior.
She noted, for exanple, that a Colunbia University study reports
t hat adol escents whose fathers have nore than two drinks a day
have a 71 percent greater risk of substance abuse thenselves.
She also relayed that 95 percent of wviolent crine on college

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- February 11, 2002



canpuses is alcohol-related and 90 percent of "college rapes”
i nvol ve al cohol use by the victimand/or the assail ant.

M5. WATTS, after acknowl edging that prevention prograns are
wor ki ng, al so stated:

They need vyour continued support and advocacy to
encourage activities and initiatives that will change
community standards and enphasize healthy lifestyles.
W need to develop sufficient resources to neet
comunity needs for appropriate levels of intervention
and treatnent for the underage population who are
identified as having alcohol or other drug problens.
But the bottom line here is that those adults who
provide alcohol to underage drinkers assume a heavy
responsibility, and this |egislation nakes clear what
that responsibility is and the consequences associ ated
wth it. The Advisory Board on Al coholism and Drug
Abuse encourages your support of this bill

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER relayed that after the aforenentioned
accident, he, too, wanted to see the penalty increased to a
felony; however, his research indicated that nost of the tine,
the adults who furnish alcohol to mnors are, for exanple, an
ol der brother who is 21 buying a six-pack of beer for a younger
brother who is 19. He opined that HB 330 woul d excl ude persons
in this type of exanple unless they had a prior conviction for
this crine. He asked Ms. Watts who, in her experience, is
contributing [al cohol] to m nors.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ di sagr eed, i ndi cating t hat
Representative Meyer is incorrect in his interpretation that HB
330 woul d not apply in the aforenentioned exanpl e.

Nunber 1870

CHAI R ROKEBERG and Ms. WATTS confirmed this, pointing out that

t he | anguage says "; or".

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked Ms. Watts whether she wanted HB 330
to apply in cases where it is merely an older sibling providing
al cohol to a younger one. He acknow edged that in the situation
in which Oficer Wllam was killed, soneone who was 31 and who
shoul d have "known better" provided the al cohol.

M5. WATTS, after noting that she did not have any statistical
information regarding who, in nobst cases, is providing alcohol

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- February 11, 2002



to mnors, added that during the course of her work in the field
for over ten years, she has seen a cross section of individuals
pur chase al cohol for underage drinkers. She said that in sone
i nstances, parents provide alcohol in a msguided effort to help
their children "learn how to drink," without really recognizing
what the inplications mght be. She concurred that in sone
i nstances, alcohol is provided by the mnor's peers or older
siblings. She surm sed, however, that because the |aw does have
a cut-off age of 21, it mght not be possible to refrain from
hol di ng soneone accountable sinply because he/she is a relative
or nerely a year older. She also pointed out that regardless of
the relationship or age differential between the mnor and the
person providing, the end result could be the sane - |oss of
life, serious injury, or damage to property.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER agr eed.
Nunber 1761

CI NDY CASHEN, Juneau Chapter, Mdthers Against Drunk Driving
(MADD), indicated that she agreed with M. Geeson's coments
regarding namng the victins. She said MADD supports HB 330
because it will act as a deterrent. Referring to the exanple
posed by Representative Myer, that of an older sibling
provi ding alcohol to a mnor, she opined that alnost certainly,
the older sibling is a "habitual purchaser” and is not doing it

for the first tinme; it wll have been nmany tinmes, until
sonet hing tragi c happens. In light of this, she said, "Yes, we
do need to make it a felony." "Because we have given ourselves

so many rights,” she added, "we are now a state of victins
and we now need to send a nessage out that we need to protect
oursel ves from ourselves."

Nunber 1647

LI NDA WLSON, Deputy Director, Public Defender Agency (PDA),
Departnent of Admnistration, testified via tel econference and
said that the PDA is encouraged by the "amendnents nmade or
suggested towards” Version O  She noted that since she does not
yet have a copy of Version O she is not sure where the | anguage
pertaining to negligence would go. She nentioned that
originally, she was going to comment on the use of the broad
term"injures”, but Version O has addressed those concerns.

M5. WLSON pointed out, however, that the PDA still has concerns

about causati on. When HB 330 requires that the person provide
alcohol and that the mnor be under the influence of an

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- February 11, 2002



al coholic beverage, causation becones a problem because
determ ning or tracking what alcohol that person is under [the

influence of] my be very difficult. "If sonmebody gives
sonebody else a beer, another person gives them another beer,
four hours later they get another beer, well, what alcohol are
they under the influence of?" she asked. She predicted that

that would be a difficult question to answer.

M5. WLSON, referring to that sane scenario, noted that there
are also tine factors that could cone into question. "How |ong
is the person who provides the al cohol exposed [to] liability,"
she asked. And with regard to the injury, she asked "what about
i ntervening causes,” and "what about superseding causes if the
person is involved in sonething where self-defense is required:
they leave, they get into a scuffle, there's serious physical
injury, but it's in self-defense?" "What if the person who
caused the injury was not expected/anticipated,"” she asked,
pointing out that there mght be "renegade actions" of a mnor
that aren't related.

M5. WLSON remarked that the PDA has submtted an indeterm nate
fiscal note because it's very difficult to tell what percentage
of the cases that the PDA handles regarding furnishing alcohol
to mnors mght involve a situation where the mnor seriously
physically injures or kills sonebody. The PDA tracks what
happens to the person who furnishes the al cohol, she explained,
noting that in many situations, that is the only charge; the PDA
does not currently have the capability of tracking or
correlating information about a separate offense or sone other
i nci dent involving the m nor.

M5. WLSON surm sed that making the crinme of furnishing al cohol
a felony as proposed by HB 330 could very well have a fiscal
i npact . She pointed out that statewi de, the PDA handl ed over
100 cases of furnishing alcohol to mnors, and she did not know
what percentage of those cases mght be charged as felonies,
which require nore time and effort than m sdeneanor charges. To
illustrate, she recounted, "You have a larger jury pool; you
have indictnments, nore court hearings; if they are convicted,
you have pre-sentence reports; aggravators J[and] mtigators
apply. So felonies take nore tine; they increase the workl oad."

Number 1436
M5. WLSON concluded by saying that narrowing the |anguage to

"serious physical injury" is an inprovenent because that is a
term already defined in Title 11. In response to a question,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- February 11, 2002



she said that she did not believe that the term "furnished" is
defined in statute.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ sai d:

One of the questions | have is whether we're
prescribing conduct. For exanple, if you have an
al cohol conpany that knows that a lot of kids are
getting a hold of its booze, and one of those kids
then goes out and seriously physically injures or
kills somebody while under the influence. Do you
think this statute would reach the corporate furnisher
or deliverer?

M5. WLSON surmsed that the crime of furnishing alcohol to
mnors by a licensee is covered by another statute; AS 04.16.052
covers a licensee, or an agent or an enployee of a |licensee who
furni shes al cohol. In response to the question of whether the
two [statutes] are exclusive, she said probably not because
"sonetimes this particular statute could apply to a bartender.™

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said it seenms to him that under Version
O if a conpany that makes an al coholic beverage has information
that a lot of underage kids are drinking its product, then "you
could go out and prosecute the corporation or its officers for
furnishing” if, one day, one of those kids goes out and kills
soneone whil e under the influence of that product.

M5. WLSON said she did not have an answer to that but noted
that since HB 330 says "person”, she is assuming that it has to
be the "person" furnishing or delivering; which could, for
exanpl e, be a bartender or a bar owner.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ sai d:

But if the bar owner knew that there was a pattern
where there was a | ot of underage drinking at that bar
and didn't take the steps to clean it wup, then you
could go back and reach the bar owner for feloniously
provi di ng. I'd be wlling to take the case as a
prosecutor."

Nunber 1261

CHAI R ROKEBERG suggested that there is a separate statute under
Title 4 that "is against the license, not the crimnality."”

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that the two statutes are not
excl usive; both could apply.

CHAI R ROKEBERG offered that one is a "license action" and one is
a crimnal action.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER, after noting that the Sullivan Arena, for
exanple, provides alcohol at its events, asked who would be
responsible if a mnor was supplied wth alcohol and then got
into an accident on the way honme, would it be the Gty of
Anchorage or whoever has the license, or both?

CHAI R ROKEBERG suggested that the bartender could be charged
with the crimnal offense under HB 330, and the licensee could
have his/her 1icense suspended/revoked under the other statute
that applied. Thus the single occurrence could result in both a
civil action and a crimnal action.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that a single course of conduct
could result in nore than one crimnal charge.

[ The Departnent of Law provided a proposed anmendnent, which
woul d | ater becone Amendnent 1, and which read as follows wth
original punctuation provided:]

(2) the person who receives the alcoholic beverage
negligently causes death or serious physical injury to
another while under the influence of the alcoholic
beverage received in violation of this section; in
this paragraph "serious physical injury" has the
meaning given in AS 11.81.900, and "negligently" neans
acting wwth civil negligence.

Nunber 1148

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General, Legal Services
Section-Juneau, Crimnal Division, Departnment of Law (DOL), said
that both the language in Version O and the |anguage in
[ Anendnment 1] "get you to the sane place"; it is nmerely a
question of which |language style is preferred. She noted that
the DOL supports HB 330 and agrees with the PDA regarding the
two additions: "serious physical injury" and the reference to
wrongdoing on the part of the child. She expl ained that the
latter point would insure that a person could not be charged
with a felony if the child goes out and gets in an accident that
was not his/her fault. She acknowl edged that there are

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- February 11, 2002



causation problems [with HB 330] and surmsed that [any
resulting cases] will be difficult to prove.

CHAI R ROKEBERG nentioned that he has sonme concern with M.
Wlson's point that there could be sone question as to which
al cohol contributed to any resulting accident.

M5. CARPENETI agreed that that 1issue could pose problens;
neverthel ess, [adoption of this type of legislation] is still
worth doing even if such cases are difficult to prove. She
noted, for exanple, that there m ght be cases where soneone has
been at a party that has "several furnishers.™

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES suggested that there could also be cases
where soneone has been drinking before arriving at such a party,
does not drink anything at the party, and then later gets in an
accident. She nmentioned that she is having a struggle with this
whol e issue because she sees a lot of |oopholes and because a
felony charge is a serious charge. She asked Ms. Carpeneti for
her thoughts on Ms. Cashen's testinony.

IVB. CARPENETI indicated her agreenent wth Ms. Cashen' s
statenment that people should sinply not be furnishing alcohol to
mnors; it is a very serious thing to do, and people who do so
should take [responsibility for] the consequences. She not ed
t hat although she, too, has sone concerns, both she and the DOL
support HB 330.

Number 0920

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she has concern about situations in
whi ch the al cohol is provided by a spouse.

CHAIR ROKEBERG clarified that AS 04.16.051(b) says: "This
section does not prohibit the furnishing or delivery of an
al coholic beverage (1) by a parent to the parent's child, by a
guardian to the guardian's ward, or by a person to the |egal
spouse of that person if the furnishing or deliver occurs off
| icensed prenises”. And, in an effort to alleviate
Representative Janes's concern about providing for a felony
charge, he noted that it 1is <currently a felony under AS
04.16.051 if the person has been previously convicted of this
sane crime wthin the five years preceding the current
vi ol ati on. In response to questions, he confirnmed that HB 330
would nmake it a felony for a first-time conviction but only if
t he underage drinker goes on to cause a serious physical injury
or a death while acting in a negligent manner.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- February 11, 2002



M5. CARPENETI suggested that if the conmttee is concerned about
the legislation including cases in which persons who are over 21
years old furnish alcohol to persons who are 18, 19 or 20 years
ol d, language could be inserted to the effect that it would only
becone a felony if the alcohol is provided to a mnor - soneone
under the age of 18. She reiterated, though, that the DCL
supports HB 330 as is. In response to a question, she noted
that even if such a change were nade, the person who was 18, 19
or 20 years old would still be charged with m nor in possession.

M5. CARPENETI, in response to questions, explained that a class
C felony can result in a sentence of up to five years

incarceration, whereas a class A msdeneanor can result in a
sentence of up to one year, and that this difference, in part,
results in the increased cost associated with prosecuting and
defending fel ony charges. In response to a question of whether
a felony charge mght be negotiated down to a m sdeneanor, she
noted that there is always the possibility of negotiations,
depending on the facts, regardless of whether the initial charge
is a felony or a m sdeneanor.

Nunmber 0578

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked whether there is any nens rea -
cul pable nental state - associated with knowi ng that the person
was [under 21].

V5. CARPENETI replied: "The cul pable nmental state is acting
with crimnal negligence, [which] violates this section, so
you'd have to be crimnally negligent about that."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ surm sed, then, that "we're not going
to have to check anyone's ID or anything like that."

MS. CARPENETI said, "Well, if it were me, | would."

CHAI R ROKEBERG nentioned that there would have to be a death or
a serious injury "preceding this whole charge.”

M5. CARPENETI said, "I think you have to act wth crimnal
negl i gence. "

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked what sort of sentence range are

first- and second-tinme offenders subject to under the current
statutory schene.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- February 11, 2002



M5. CARPENETI posited that it would depend on the facts, adding
that she would have to research that information and provide it
| ater.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ, referring to his earlier exanple about
a hypotheti cal conpany that knew wunderage drinkers were
accessing its product, asked whether HB 330 could be used to
prosecut e that conpany.

MS. CARPENETI said that she reads [HB 330] to be nore limted
than that; she posited that it applies to the person who
actually provides the alcohol. She remarked that, as Chair
Rokeberg has already stated, there are other statutes that would
apply in Representative Berkowitz's exanple. She added that she
would research the issue to see whether the DOL has ever
attenpted to prosecute such a case or whether it has been done
in another jurisdiction under a simlar statute.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ encouraged the DOL to look into that
possibility, saying that it seens to him that an aggressive
prosecution could, under the current statutory schene, reach the
corporate executives of his hypothetical exanple and, under
certain circunstances, m ght indeed be warranted.

Nunmber 0383

CHAI R ROKEBERG cl osed the public hearing on HB 330. He noted
that one of the issues the conmttee nmust decide is whether to
use the |anguage proposed by the DOL [via Amendnent 1] or to
retain the | anguage in Version O

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said that it did not matter that nuch to
her which |anguage is used. She nentioned, however, that it
seens to her, during attenpts to increase penalties because
sonething horrible has happened, that the consistent argunent

for doing so is that raising the penalties will act as a
deterrent, but in her experience, such has not proved to be the
case. She added that she has a problem with the concept of
trying to create, via laws and penalties, a perfect life on

earth; it's just not ever going to happen.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER indicated that he is not too concerned over
whi ch | anguage is used either. And while HB 330 may not deter
everyone from providing al cohol to underage drinkers, he said he
feels that HB 330 is "a victims-rights bill" in the sense that
at least there wll be a serious penalty associated wth this

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- February 11, 2002



offense in instances when an underage drinker goes out and
causes the death of soneone.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ opined that the sinpler |anguage [in

Amendrment 1] would be preferable; "it's clearer, it's easier to
prosecute, people know what the rules are, and, when we're
sending nessages wth our legislation, it ought not to be
cryptic.”

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that he is not "wedded to either one."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ made a notion to adopt Anmendnent 1.
There being no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN comrented that word of this type of a |aw,
which could nmaeke it a felony to provide alcohol to a mnor if a
serious accident results, will quickly spread.

TAPE 02-16, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN also nentioned that in "the valley," the
probl em of adults buying al cohol for mnors is epidemc.

Number 0048

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN noved to report the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 330, version 22-1LS1178\0O Ford, 2/11/02,
as anended, out of conmmttee with individual recomrendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
330(JUD) was reported from the House Judiciary Standing
Commi ttee.

HB 332 - EXTENDI NG COUNCI L ON DOMESTI C VI OLENCE

Number 0074

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the |last order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 332, "An Act extending the term nation date of
the Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault; and
providing for an effective date.” He noted that the conmttee
has received a proposed commttee substitute (CS) that addresses
a concern discussed at the prior hearing on HB 332.

Nunber 0116

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- February 11, 2002



PATTI SWENSON, Staff to Representative Con Bunde, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, sponsor, on behalf of the sponsor, confirnmed that
the proposed CS does address that concern, and asked the
committee to al so consider anending the proposed CS to say "nmay"

instead of "shall" on page 1, line 6. She explained that such a
change woul d give the executive director flexibility with regard
to hiring staff; for exanple, if there are ten authorized
positions, the executive director would not have to fill all of
those positions if budget constraints prevailed. She al so
suggested deleting from page 1, lines 7-8, "that is authorized
by the legislature in the budget docunents relating to the
counci | ". She opined that this change would give the executive
director the flexibility "to change the office around"; for
exanple, if a grant witer was needed, the executive director
could fill that need instead of hiring two clerical staff.

Number 0240

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 332, version 22-LS1290\C, Lauterbach,
2/8/02, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version C
was before the conmttee.

Number 0297

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ made a notion to adopt Anmendnment 1,
whi ch would replace "shall"™ with "nmay" on page 1, line 6. There
bei ng no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Number 0324

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ made a notion to adopt Anmendnent 2,
which would delete "that is authorized by the |egislature in the
budget docunents relating to the council” from page 1, lines 7-
8.

REPRESENTATI VES JAMES and OGAN obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES opined that the executive director should
only hire staff as authorized by the |egislature, adding that
this may nmean that the council mght still have enpty positions.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ sai d t hat accordi ng to hi s
understanding of Ms. Swenson's testinmony, "if we require hiring
and staff decisions to be nade according to budget docunents, it
precludes hiring decisions being nade, say, if there's a grant
or other source [of funds] that cones to the council.™

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 28- February 11, 2002



M5. SWENSON clarified that that is not exactly what she said
although it is also true. She said that by taking out that
| anguage, it would give the executive director the flexibility
to change the office makeup around, and still hire what is
aut horized within the budget; authorized funds for two clerica
staff, for exanple, could be used instead for one grant witer.

CHAI R ROKEBERG cal |l ed an at-ease from2:49 p.m to 2:50 p. m

M5. SVENSON, in an effort to alleviate concerns, suggested that
instead of the change proposed by Amendnent 2, the |anguage
could be altered to say: "the executive director nay hire staff
not to exceed the budget authorization".

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES al so objected, and said that "that assunes
that everyone's going to go out and exceed the [budget
aut hori zation]."

CHAI R ROKEBERG pr oposed | eaving the | anguage on page 1, lines 7-
8, as is, and suggested that if the sponsor wants to propose a
further change to the authorization |anguage, he could do so
before the House Finance Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ wi t hdrew Anendnent 2.

Nunber 0609

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to report the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 332, version 22-LS1290\C, Lauterbach,
2/ 8/ 02, as anended, out of committee wth i ndi vi dual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 332(JUD) was reported from the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conmittee.

ADJ OURNNVENT

Number 0613

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conm ttee neeting was adjourned at 2:53 p.m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -29- February 11, 2002



